
FIRST COMMITTEE 49at,b 
MEETING 

SIXTH Monday, 21 January 1952, at 3 p.m. 

Official Records ' - Palais de Chaillot, Paris 

CONTENT S 
Page 

Admission of new Members, including the right of candidate States to present proof 
of the conditions required under Article 4 of the Charter (A/1887/Rev.l, 
A/1899, A/1907, A/C.l/702jRev.1 and AjC.l/703) (continued) ....... ... 219 

Chairman : Mr. Finn MoE (Norway). 

Admission of new Members, including lltc rigbt of 
candidate Stutes to present proof of the conditions 
required under Article 4 of the Charter (A/1887(Rev.l, 
A/1899, A/1907, AfC.l/702/Rev.l and AfC.l/703) 
(continued) 

[Item 60]* 
GI!NERAL DEBATE (continued) 

1. Mr. Y. MALIK (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) 
opposed the Peruvtan delegation's draft resolution 
(AfC.1/702/Rev.l) on the admission of new Members, 
as being inconsistent with the Charter. Article 4 of the 
Charter stipulated four conditions which must be satisfied 
by States applying for admission to the United Nations : 
they must be peace-loving, must accept the obligations 
contained in the Charter and must be able and willing to 
carry out those obligations. Article 18 of the Charter said 
that decisions on the admission of new M embers to the 
United Nations, considered an important question, must 
be made by a two-thirds majority of the Members present 
and_ yoting. Article 4, paragraph 2, stipulated that the 
dec•ston of the General Assembly must be made upon the 
recommendation of the Security Council ; and lastly, 
Article 2?, paragraph 3, specified that the decision of the 
Security Counol must be made by an affirmative vote 
of seven Members, including the concurring votes of the 
permanent members. 
:.>.. The opponents of the principle of unanimity had 
tried in vam to undermine its basis ; many such attempts 
had been made since 194?. For example, t he International 
Court of Justice had been asked to advise whether a State 
could be admitted to membership in the United Nations 
on the decision of the General Assembly even if the Security 
Council had made no recommendation to that effect or 
if the statutory recommendation had not been adopted 
unanimously. The Soviet delegation had opposed the 
reference of that question to the Court ; Article 4, para­
graph 2, was sufficiently clear and needed no additional 
elucidation, and, moreover, the USSR considered that the 
International Court of Justice was not competent to 
interpret the Charter, since Article 96 of the Charter laid 
down that the advisory opinion of the International Court 
of Justice could be requested only on legal questions. 
The Court clearly had no competence with regard to the 
admission of new Members, whtch was a political question. 

• Indicates the item number on the General Assembly aaenda. 

3. In spite of that objection, the Anglo-American group 
had placed the question before the Court. On :3 March 1950 
the Court had made known its findings •, according to 
which the admission of a State to membership in the 
United Nations pursuant to paragraph 2 of Article 4 of the 
Charter could not be effected by a decision of the General 
Assembly when the Security Council had made no recom­
mendation for admission, by reason of the candidate 
failing to obtain the requisite majority vote or of the negative 
vote of a permanent member on the recommendation. In 
explanation of its opinion, the Court had stated that two 
conditions must be satisfied : first, the Security Council 
recommendation and secondly, the General Assembly 
decision. The Charter did not place the Security Council 
in a subordinate position ; its recommendation of the 
candidate State was essential before the General Assembly 
could vote on its admission tO membership. That reply 
proved the flimsy nature of the attacks made upon that 
important clause in the Charter. 
4. In his statement introducing his draft resolution, the 
Peruvian representative had boosted the principle of 
universality in the U nited Nations; yet the Peruvian draft 
resolut ion (A/C.1/702/ Rcv.1) proposed additional res­
trictions on the admission of new Members. I n particular, 
the second paragraph and paragraph 6 of the operative part 
were incompatible with the Charter and the rules of proce­
dure of the Security Council and the General Assembly. 
T he proofs required under the draft resolution were not 
stipulated by any p rovisions at present in force (United 
Nations Charter, Article 4, paragraph 1 ; rules 58, 59 and 60 
of the provisional rules of procedure of the Security Council; 
rule 133 of the rules of procedure of t he General 
Assembly). 
5. The rules of procedure laid down for the admission of 
new Members had been applied many times since the 
establishment of the United Nations. None of the States 
recently admitted had been asked to present proofs of its 
qualifications. T he Charter made no such demand, and 
it would have been contrary to the letter and the spirit of 
Article 4 of the Charter if the Assembly had arrogated to 
itself any such right. 
6. The object of the draft resolution submitted by Peru 
was in fact solely to circumvent the Charter and the rules 

• Sec Competence of General Asstmbly for lite admusion of a S talt 
to tht United Nations, Advisory Opinion, J.C.J. Reports 1950, p . 4· 

219 
A/C.l/SR.495 



Generll Assembly-Sixth Session-First Committee --------- ---------------------
of procedure ; it was proposed to d iscriminate between 
States on the basis of a criterion of " maturity " which 
was merely a pretext for eliminating the undesirable. 
7. It was propo~ed to demand that a State should prove 
the maintenance of frit::ndly relations with other Statts 
-but, fo r such rehltions to e.,ist bet wet n States, both sides 
must be actuated by a spirit of frit::ndsl ip. When Bulgaria 
applied for membership, the United ~hates, which had 
broken off diplomatic rdations with tl tat State, would be 
able to assert that Rulgaria did not mai:1tain the prescribed 
friendly relations with other States. l could adduce that 
fact before the Security Council, wh·ch would transmit 
it with its recommendation to the General Assembly ; 
and under that pretext an unwelcorr e candidate might 
very well be eliminated. 
8. Clearly the proposed procedure •vas in fact merely 
a new method of eliminating candidates ·.vho did not support 
.the United States. The Peruvian delegation had asserted 
!during the current session that just ce was above the 
Charter. That was a peculjar concept, which would make 
it possible to defy the United ~ations Charter. Who was 
to decide what was just or unjust ? "Nho was to be the 
judge ? With or without a pretext, the United States and 
the United Kingdom were opposing the admission to 
membership of the peace-loving peoples' democracies. 
On the other hand, Mr. Belaunde considered that Greece's 
election to the Security Council was perfectly right and 
proper, although it was a flagrant bre~ch of the London 
" gentleman's agreement" on the fair < istribution of seats. 
9. T he effect of adopting the Peruvian draft resolution 
would be to open the way to fresh pos~ibilities of arbitrary 
action in connexion with the admissiOJ t of new Members. 
10. T he third paragraph of the Peruvian draft resolution 
referred to the advisory opiruon of the International Court 
of Justice of 28 May 1948 • and Mr. l:elaunde had stated 
that in accordance with that advisory opinion a Member 
State of the United Nations was not < ntitled to make its 
consent to a candidate's admission depe 1dent on conditions 
not expressly provided by paragraph 1 of Article 4 of 
the Charter. But the very substance of the truth was 
distorted in that paragraph of the Peruv an draft resolution. 
The effect of that paragraph would be to prevent the 
admission to membership in the Uni•ed Nations of the 
(ourteen candidate States. 
11. That advisory opinion of the l nt·:rnational Court of 
Justice, it should be noted , had a.lrea·iy been studied at 
the third session of the General Asserr bly *. It had been 
found that the main question on wh ch the Court had 
been divided was precisely the corre< t interpretation of 
Article 4 of the Charter : whether the omditions stipulated 
were to be considered exhaustive or rot ; whether other 
conditions could or could not be stipulated; and whether 
such other conditions might be political. On that highly 
important question the Court had been flr from unanimous. 
Eight judges had considered that the admission of new 
Members was ' not only a legal but also a political 
question ; that is, eight out of fifteen judges had 
opposed Mr. Belaunde's contention. 
12. Moreover, the judges had been equally divided, seven 
against seven, on the question of whet 1er it was possible 
to demand the simultaneous admission to the United 
Nations of a number of States. Si.x judges had said that 
the simultaneous admission of a nutaber of candidate 
States was permissible, and a seventh, Mr. Alvarez, had 

1 See Admusion of a State to the Utrited Nati( m (Charter, Article 4) , 
Adllilory Opimon, J.C.J. Roports 1948, p. S7· 

1 See OJJU:ial RuMth of the General A ss.,bly, TJ.jrd Sunon, Part !, 
Plmary M e.tingt, 1 75th and 176th meetings. 

stated that it might be justified m certain cases, thus 
partially supporting that view. 
13. In the Security Council the United States delegation 
had, as a matter of fact, already proposed the simultaneous 
admission of a number of States-which was no doubt 
the case Mr. Alvarez had had in mind. The question 
before the Committee was precisely such an exceptional 
case. That was why, although the advisory opinion given 
by the International Court of Justice on 28 May 1948 
bore the signature of nine judges, it must not be overlooked 
that two of them had given a different opinion on the 
most important question before the Court. That clearly 
showed that the opinion of the majority of the Court had 
been the opposite of that upheld by Mr. Belaunde. 
14. Attention should also be given to the inconsistent 
attitude taken by the majority of the Court over the question 
whether Article 4 of the Charter prohibited political 
factors from being taken into account. T he Court's advisory 
opinion of 28 May 1948 ' showed that, according to the 
terms of Article 4 of the Charter, the consideration of 
political factors was in no way to be excluded. That meant 
that for the admission of new Members, the Security 
Council and the General Assembly could be guided not 
only by the criteria explicitly defined in .Article 4 but also 
by political criteria, even though they were not explicitly 
mentioned in the Article. Thus, the third paragraph of 
the Peruvian draft resolution was pointless. 
15. Moreover, the Court, which had not been unanimous 
on that important matter but had adopted its advisory 
opinion by a dubious majority, had contradicted itself 
in its own findings. 
16. For all those reasons, the USSR delegation regarded 
as untenable the Peruvian delegation's attempt to impose 
the advisory opinion of the International Court of Justice 
on the United Nations as a guiding principle in respect 
of the admission of new Members. The only valid conclu­
sion in view of the foregoing considerations would be to 
say that it was allowable, in dealing with the admission 
of new Members, to take into account both legal and 
political factors. 
17. Paragraph l of the operative part of th.e Peruvian 
draft resolution, which was closely Linked to the third 
paragraph of the preamble, stated that the judgment of 
the Organization should be based only on the legal condi­
tions established in Article 4. That again was a misinter­
pretation of the Charter. In finding legal rules in the 
Charter, Mr. Belaunde was guilty of inconsistency ; he 
recognized that the interpretation and application of the 
Charter should be primarily the concern of the founders 
of the United Nations, while, on the other hand, he referred 
to the opinion of the International Court of Justice which 
he regarded as the competent authority for the same task 
of interpreting the Charter. 
18. The Peruvian representative had said that when 
candidate States had given proof of their peace-loving 
intentions, a political judgment would be given. That 
statement showed that the admission of new Members 
was no longer merely a legal question. I t was in fact a 
matter which dep, nded on political considerations and the 
attitude adopled towards certain States by the " Anglo­
American majority " was ample proof of that fact. Why 
should States which fulfilled the requirements of the 
Charter be excluded ? Why should Italy be accepted if 
Romania was refused ? It was obvious that the " Anglo­
American majority " was moved only by exclusively poli~ 

• See Adwriuion of a Stau to t.lte United Naliotll (CIIaTttr, A rtiek 4), 
Adtiisory Opiaioa. I.C.J. R.eporu 1 9~8, p. 63. 



495th Meetiog-21 January 1952 221 

tical arguments. That was contrary to the letter and the 
spirit of the Charter and was tantamount to closing the 
door of the United Nations to peace-loving States. 
19. The argument on behalf of the . admission of Italy 
put forward in .the last paragraph of the memorandum 
submitted by El Salvador, Guatemala and Honduras 
(A/1906) was equally unacceptable. Racial criteria or 
criteria based on the similarity of political institutions 
were alien both to the text and to the spirit of the Charter. 
20. T he Soviet Union had never opposed and was still 
not opposing the admission of I taly to the United Nations, 
but it considered that such admission should be granted 

•on a basis of equality with all other legitimate candidates. 
'It was the indefensible attitude of the United States, 
Great Britain and France which had so far prevented Italy 
from entering the United Nations. 
21. Paragraph 3 of the operative pa1t of the draft resolution 
was also unacceptable. Mr. Belaunde was requesting that 
the procedure to be adopted should be based solely on the 
text of his resolution, which was contrary both to the 
Charter and to the rules of procedure. Moreover, the 
sponsor of the proposal contradicted himself once more 
in that paragraph. On the one hand, he proposed that the 
Security Council should make a further examination of 
all outstanding requests for admission and, on the other 
hand, he said that the Council should base its decision 
on the requirements laid down in the Charter. 
22. The Peruvian proposal was an attempt to exercise 
pressure on the Security Council. It was unacceptable 
and completely untenable. Its adoption would complicate 
the question of the admission of new Members and aggra­
vate international tension by making relations between 
States more difficult. The USSR delegation would 
vote against the draft resolution submitted by Peru 
(A/C.1 /7'.12/Rev.1). 
23. 'l'hc Soviet Union delegation was opposed to making 
an arbitrary choice among the candidates which would 
mean that certain States would enjoy a privileged position. 
It therefore submitted the following draft resolution 
(A/C.1 /703) : 

" The General ilssembly, 
Recammends that the Security Council should reconsider f\ 

the applications of Albania, the People's Republic of J 
Mongolia, Bulgaria, Romania, Hungary, Finland, Italy, If 
Portugal, Ireland, Jordan, Austria, Ceylon and Nepal, •! 
and consider the application of Libya for membership ' 
in the United Nations. " 

24. The question of the admission of Libya should, in the 
opinion of the USSR delegation, be settled at the same time 
as that of the thirteen other States, some of which, such 
as Albania, had made their application six years earlier. 
25. Mr. DIHIGO (Cuba) congratulated the Peruvian 
representative on the draft resolution submitted by. his 
delegation. The draft resolution was a step forward, smce 
it sought to introduce rules and regulations in a field where 
discretionary judgment had governed hitherto. 
2(). Nevertheless, as the Colombian representative had 
indicated and as the Peruvian representative had himself 
recognized, the proposal seemed unlikely to solve the real 
problem, beca~se although, acC<?rding to the dra~t resolu­
tion the candidates must furmsh proof of the1r peace­
loving character, the evaluation of those prO?~S would still 
continue to depend on the unfettered opmwn of each 
Member State. Since the draft resolution did not eliminate 
the right of veto of the five permanent members of the 
Security Council, it was possible that the Council might 
continue to reject the candidature of a State if its proofs 

were regarded as insufficient by one of the permanent 
members. 
27. It was undoubtedly a mistake to link the question 
of the admission of new Members to the veto of the per­
manent members of the Security Council, which was not 
applicable in that matter. 
28. Article 4 of the Charter laid down that new Members 
should be admitted by decision of the General Assembly 
on the recommendation of the Security Council. Although, 
according to its grammatical acceptation, the word " recom­
mendation " implied a favourable recommendation, it 
could be maintained, as Dr. Arce, representative of Argen­
tina, had done, that a recommendation could be either 
favourable or unfavourable. The International Court 
of Justice, however, in its opinion of 3 March 1950, had 
ruled that the recommendation referred to in Article 4 
of the Charter implied a favourable recommendation. It 
was nevertheless true that even if the Court's opinion were 
accepted, it was questionable whether or not that recommen­
dation constituted a substantive matter and, in consequence, 
whether or not it was subject to the rule of unanimity among 
the five permanent members of the Security Council. 
29. It should be recalled that the rule of unanimity among 
the five permanent members had only been accepted at 
San Francisco after a dramatic debate, in which the four 
sponsoring Powers had declared that unless the rule was 
accepted, there would be no United Nations. Of the 
fifty States present, only the representatives of Cuba and 
Colombia had opposed the rule as to the veto ; fifteen 
States had abstained and among the thirty-three States 
which had finally acquiesced in the rule, many had done 
so reluctantly. 
30. Moreover, when the question of Yoting procedure 
in the Security Council had been discussed, a questionnaire ' 
had been submitted to the sponsoring Powers, to which 
the latter had replied by a declaration 6 stating inter alia 
that the Security Council would be called upon to exercise 
two different categories of function : on the one hand, 
functions in connexion \\'ith the peaceful settlement of 
disputes and coercive measures, and, on the other, miscella­
neous functions. In the first case, decisions were to be 
taken by a special majority, that is, by an affirmative vote 
of seven members including all the permanent members. 
In the second, decisions might be taken by a simple majo­
rity of seven votes. 
:H. T he four-Power declaration had then enumerated 
a series of. questions not requiring a .special majority in 
the Counc1l. Certam of those quesuons had not been 
questions of procedure. That being so, the clause in 
Article 27, paragraph 2, concerning voting by the Council 
on matters of procedure, related not to questions which 
from the le&al point of view were procedural in character, 
but to questiOns which differed from those that were subject 
to the veto rule and were strictly defined in the declaration 
of the four sponsoring Powers. 
32. That solemn declaration was of particular importance 
because it had been the basis for acceptance at San Fran­
cisco of the rule of unanimity among the five permanent 
members of the Security Council. Since, according to 
the terms of that declaration, only questions relating to 
the maintenance of peace and security were subject to the 
veto rule, it followed that the admission of new members 
must be regarded as a procedural question. Moreover, 
the veto was indisputably a privilege and it was a univer­
sally accepted rule of \aw that the interpretation o£ any 

• See Docume11ts of the United !liatiotts Conference ot~ International 
O•·gani.,atiorr, San Fr~ncisco •9+5• Volume X I, document 855 111/ t /B/:>. . 

• !bid. document 852 Ili/I!J7 · 



222 Geoeml Assembly-Sixth Session-First Committee ---------------------------
privilege must be restrictive. In the circumstances, it 
could not be gainsaid that the veto rule should not apply 
in cases where the Security Council was called upon to 
make a recommendation to the General Assembly concern­
ing the admission of new Members. 

33. The question then arose which c•rgan should decide 
that the question of the Council's re·:ommendation con­
cerning the admission of new Members was a procedural 
matter. The Council itself most certainly could not decide 
since, despite the reverse sustained by the rule of the double 
veto in the case of the invitation from the Security Council 
to a representative of the People's l ~epublic of China, 
that rule could nevertheless be invoked again on the basis 
of the declaration of the four sponsoring Powers at the 
San Francisco Conference. 

34. The Charter had not provided that the International 
Court of Justice should be responsible for interpreting 
rules in d ispute. The idea which h2d prevailed at San 
Francisco was that each organ shouhl interpret its own 
rules. 

35. T hat was why the General ASS<:mbly should itself 
decide whether the Security Council s recommendations 
concerning the admission of new memb!rs were recommen­
dations on substantive or procedural matters. 

36. The Assembly should also request the Security 
Council to inform it of the results of t he ballots on appli­
cations for admission in each case. It mi1:ht admit candidates 
which had received at least seven £avo\ rable votes. 

37. The representative of Cuba res!rved the right to 
comment later on the Peruvian draft resolution when he 
had studied the amendments to it. 

38. Mr. LI U (China) congratula·:ed the Peruvian 
representative on the moral and juriolical arguments he 
had advanced with the intention of r€ medying the abuse 
of the ri~ht of veto in the Security Council with regard to 
the adm1ssion of new Members. 

i$9. Certain speakers, however, had l:.id too much stress 
on the universality of the United Na·ions. Universality 
was indeed a desirable goal, but it w IS desirable only if 
nations were aware of a community of interests and would 
work together with unity of purpose. 

40. Article 4 ofthe Charter, which laid down the conditions 
for the admission of new Members, pro;rided more particu­
larly that candidate States should be peace-loving. Many 
States were not peace-loving and there :ore d id not qualify 
io become Members of the United Nations. Further, 
Articles 5 and 6 provided that States .vhich had violated 
the principles of the Charter might l:e either suspended 
or expelled. It must therefore be concluded that a State 
which did not fulfil its obligations under the Charter 
couid not be admitted to the Organiz~ tion. 

41. lienee, the representative of Pen t, in presenting his 
draft resolution, had very wisely urged that the admission 
of new Members should be based on the Juridical consi­
derations contained in Article 4, and the 1ssue must not 
be confused by a flood of arguments in favom of universality. 

42. The Chinese delegation would vote in favour of 
the draft resolution subJ?litte~ by the delegation of Peru 
(A/C.1/702/Rev.1) .. . 

43. Mr. MAZA (Chile) recalled that when the question 
of the admission of· new Members had been examined at 
previous sessions of the General Assenbly, his delegation 
had advocated the admission of all ~eace-loving States 
with a view to strengthening the influence and prestige 
of the United Nations. 

44. During the second part of the General Assembly's 
first session, the Security Council had submitted a report 
on ten States which had applied for admission '. As a 
result of that report, the Assembly had admitted 
Afghanistan, [celand, Sweden and Thailand. Albania, 
Austria, Ireland, Jordan and Portugal had not been admitted 
because the five permanent members of the Security Council 
had been unable to agree on their case. At that time 
accordingly it had been held that the recommendation of 
the Security Council required an affirmative vote by the 
five permanent members. 

45. I n 1947, six other States had applied for admission. 
None of them had been admitted, either because they had 
failed to obtain a majority vote in the Security Council or 
because one of the permanent members had voted against 
them. The USSR representative had then insisted that 
the question of the admission of new Members was a 
substantive question for the Security Council and required 
unanimity on the part of the five permanent members. 
The General Assembly, at its second session, had adopted 
resolution 113 (I 1), recommending that the permanent 
members of the Security Council should consult with a 
view to reaching agreement on the admission of States 
which had applied and which had not yet received favourable 
recommendations for admission. Further, in its resolu­
tion 113 B (II), the General Assembly requested the 
International Court of Justice to give a consultative opinion 
on whether a member of the Securi ty Council was entitled 
to make its consent to the admission of a State dependent 
on conditions not expressly provided in Article 4 of the 
Charter. 

46. In an advisory opinion dated 28 May 1948, the Court 
had indicated that a Member of the United Nations was 
not juridically entitled to make its consent dependent 
on conditions not expressly provided in Article 4 and in 
particular, on the condition that other States be admitted 
together with that State. 

47. At its third session, the General Assembly had 
adopted resolution 197 A ( I [I) recommending that members 
of the Assembly and of the Council should act in accordance 
with the opinion of the I nternational Court of Justice 
and resolution 197 B ( I II), by which it reguested the 
Security Council to reconsider each application for 
admission separately. The same year, on the recommen­
dation of the Interim Committee, the Assembly had 
adopted resolution 267 (Ill) which recommended that the 
permanent members of the Security Council should seek 
agreement upon what possible decisions by the Security 
Council they might forbear to exercise their veto, when 
even affirmative votes had already been cast in the Council. 
48. In 1949, the General Assembly had adopted resolu­
tion 296 (IV) which recalled the recommendations in 
previous resolutions and which also requested the Inter­
national Court of Justice to give an advisory opinion as to 
whether the admission of a State to membership might 
be effected by a decision of the General Assembly when the 
Security Council had not recommended its admission. 
On 3 March 1950, the Court had given the opinion that 
a State could not be admitted to the United Nations by a 
decision of the General Assembly unless the Security 
Council had previously made a valid recommendation. 
49. Thus it must be concluded that the General Asaembly 
was not empowered to disregard the Security Council's 
recommendation. 
50. The representative of Chile felt that the Peruvian 
draft resolution should be examined in the light of that 

' See document A/to8. 



---~95th Meeting-21 January 1952 223 

brief historical survey. The draft resolution, which was 
based on experience, "suggested a new procedure. Despite 
the good intentions of the Peruvian representative there 
was, however, reason to fear that the Security Council 
would repudiate that new procedure, since there was 
every reason to suppose that like all organs endowed with 
power, the Council would not willingly desist from abusing 
that power. 

Z>l. For that reason his delegation was prepared to accept 
the Peruvian draft resolution ( AfC.l/702/Rev.l) if an 
amendment were included recalling the successive resolu­
tions adopted by the General Assembly on the subject. 

52. Mr. N ISOT (Belgium) expressed appreciation of 
the spirit in which the draft resolution had been prepared. 
He would vote for the draft, since its objectives were in 
harmony with those of the Charter. 

ii::l. Mr. Nisot would, however, make three observations. 
In the first place, Article 4 of the Charter provided that 
membership in the United :'\ations was open to all peace­
loving States which accepted the obligations contained 
in the Charter, and were able and willing to carry out those 
obligations. The question whether those conditions were 
satisfied in the case of a particular State depended on the 
circumstances peculiar to that case. Article 4 did not set 
up any priority among the factors to be borne in mind in 
determining whether a State was peace-loving and willing 
to carry out the obligations contained in the Charter. 
By its distribution of the emphasis, however, the draft 
resolution seemed to place special importance on an 
applicant's being party to treaties establishing friendly 
relations and providing for the settlement of disputes 
by peaceful means. That was not necessarily conclusive 
proof. On the one hand, treaties of friendship did not 
always have the significance which their terminology would 
suggest. It was important, too, to know who was the other 
party, and above all how they had been observed. Further­
more, although very many Members of the United Kations 
had not assumed the binding obligation to submit to arbi­
tration or judicial settlement, they had shown themselves 
to be peace-loving and willing to respect the Charter. 

54. In the second place, under the Peruvian draft resolu­
tion, States applying or having applied for admission to 
the United Nations would be requested by the General 
Assembly to provide the Security Council and the General 
Assembly with proof that they satisfied the conditions 
required by Article 4. Such a request was conceivable 
if addressed to States whose cases had not vet been dealt 
with by the United Nations; but it was hardly conceivable 
if addressed to States whose applications for admission 
had failed, or at any rate if addressed to all such States. 
In the case of a large number of sueh States, the great 
majority of the members of the Security Council and the 
General Assembly had already expressed a favourable 
view, and rejection had been due solely to the exercise 
of the veto. To request those States now to prove their 
fitness for admission would be to imply that their fitness 
was still uncertain, and that consequently many Members 
of the United Nations had supported their applications 
for admission in the past either without having proof 
of their fitness or without having sufficient proof. 

55. In the third place, the draft resolution recommended 
that the Security Council should base its action on the con­
ditions contained in the Charter. It would, however, be 
more appropriate for such a recommendation to be addressed 
to the members of the Security Council and not to the 

Printed in France 

Security Council itself, since each of the Council's previous 
recommendations had presumably been based on a correct 
interpretation of the Charter. In view of the fact that 
it had invariably conformed to the recommendations of 
the Council, could the Assembly today, by expressly 
calling upon the Council to respect the Charter, suggest 
that it might not have done so in the past or would not do 
so in the future ? 

56. Having made those three points, the Belgian delegation 
would vote for the Peruvian draft resolution. 

57. In conclusion, he referred to the case of Italy, which 
had been the subject of the resolution adopted by the 
General Assembly at its 351st plenary meeting (A/L.2). 
In the conviction that the participation of Italy was neces­
sary to the effective functioning of the United Nations, he 
expressed the wish that the obstacle hitherto preventing 
Italy's admission, in violation of the Charter, might finally 
be overcome. 

58. Mahmoud FA WZI Bey (Egypt) recalled that his 
delegation had invariably supported the many General 
Assembly resolutions recommending the Security Council 
to examine applications for membership on the basis of 
the requirements prescribed by Article 4 of the Charter 
and the advisory opinion of the International Court of 
Justice, given on 28 May 1948, which stipulated that a 
Member was not juridically entitled to make its consent 
to the admission of a State dependent on conditions not 
provided by Article 4. 

iiH. The principle of universality was unquestionably the 
ideal towards which the United Nations should strive. 
Nevertheless, the main condition was that applicants should 
fulfil the requirements established by Article 4 of the 
Charter. The most that could be said was that, in assessing 
applications, excessive strictness and over-insistence on 
absolute perfection should be avoided, since that would 
result in turning away all applicants. 

60. Some fifteen States had applied in vain for membership, 
some of them as long as six years ago. It was Egypt's view 
that those States should be admitted to membership in the 
United Nations. In particular, Libya, whose admission 
in principle-after its establishment as an independent 
State-had been recommended by the Assembly's una­
nimous vote of 21 November 194H (resolution 289A (IV)), 
should be admitted immediately. 

61. The consequences of the present deadlock facing 
the United Nations were manifestly unfair. It was the 
result of the international tension and antagonism between 
two " blocs " of States. For that reason, Egypt heartily 
desired that the States applying for membership should be 
admitted. 

G2. The Egyptian delegation reserved its right to explain 
later its vote on any draft resolution submitted. 

63. On a point of order, Mr. KURAL (Turkey), supported 
by Mr. NISOT (Belgium), proposed that the Committee 
should postpone the meeting for 8.30 p.m. He pointed out 
that there was no urgency and that delegations needed the 
evening for work outside the Committees. 

64. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the proposal for 
the postponement of the meeting scheduled for 8.30 p.m. 

The proposal was adopted by 40 votes to 4, with 
10 abstentions. 

The meeting rose at 6.5 p.m. 

D-9310<>--Februarv '952-J,6oo 




